
  

Page 1 of 3 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
OCTOBER 16, 2024 - 1:30 PM 

 
Members of the public who wish to attend in person may do so at: 

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 
The SMART Board of Directors will facilitate using a dual format with listening and participation 
available through Zoom and in-person.  SMART provides several remote methods for viewing the 
SMART Board Meetings and providing Public Comment.  
 
HOW TO WATCH THE LIVE MEETING USING THE ZOOM 
https://sonomamarintrain-org.zoom.us/j/88227285065?pwd=SWQ4eDBMcTlHZUgvVndIYlhHTzJPUT09 

Webinar ID: 882 2728 5065 
Passcode: 019592 
 
TELECONFERENCE 
Members of the public wishing to participate via teleconference can do so by dialing in the following 
number the day of the meeting: (669) 900-9128; Access Code: 882 2728 5065; Passcode: 019592. 
 
WATCH THE BOARD MEETING VIA LIVESTREAM 
You are able to view live broadcasts of Board meetings online here:  
https://www.sonomamarintrain.org/meetings  To view the meeting, select “View Event” at the time 
of the meeting. 
 
HOW TO PROVIDE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS  
Prior To Meeting:  Technology limitations may limit the ability to receive verbal public comments during the 

meeting. If you wish to make a comment you are strongly encouraged to please submit your comment 
to Board@SonomaMarinTrain.org by 5:00 PM on Tuesday, October 15, 2024.   

 
During the Meeting: The SMART Board Chair will open the floor for public comment during the Public 
Comment period on the agenda. Please check and test your computer settings so that your audio 
speaker and microphones are functioning. Speakers are asked to limit their comments to two (2) 
minutes. The amount of time allocated for comments during the meeting may vary at the 
Chairperson’s discretion depending on the number of speakers and length of the agenda.   
  

Page 1 of 106

https://sonomamarintrain-org.zoom.us/j/88227285065?pwd=SWQ4eDBMcTlHZUgvVndIYlhHTzJPUT09
https://www.sonomamarintrain.org/meetings
mailto:Board@SonomaMarinTrain.org


  

Page 2 of 3 

 

                      BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

      OCTOBER 16, 2024 – 1:30 PM 
Members of the public who wish to attend in person may do so at: 

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Approval of the September 18, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes  
 

3. Board Member Announcements 
 

4. General Manager’s Report 
 

5. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 

Consent Calendar 
6a. Accept Monthly Ridership Report – September 2024 
6b. Approve Monthly Financial Status Report – July/August 2024 
6c. Adopt a Resolution allowing the General Manager or his Designee to Execute a Master Funding 

Agreement with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for planning, programming, 
transportation, transit, and land use or other projects  

6d. Authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. IT-PS-21-002 
with Golden Five, LLC in an amount of $156,873.41 for a not-to-exceed amount of $381,473.41  

6e. Authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. OP-PS-21-005 
with Urban Transportation Associates, Inc.  in an amount of $51,175 for a total not-to-exceed 
amount of $387,859 

 
Regular Calendar 
7. Petaluma North Station – Preparation for Passenger Service – Planned System Closure – 

Presented by Train Control Systems Manager, Aaron Parkes  
 

8. Strategic Plan Update – Presented by Planning Manager, Emily Betts 
 

9. Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to Adjust Funding to the 
Windsor Extension Project (Budget Amendment #7) – Presented by Chief Financial Officer, 
Heather McKillop 
 

10. Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to add Fund Balance from 
Fiscal Year 2025 and increase Expenditure Authority for Freight (Budget Amendment #8) – 
Presented by Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 2 of 106



  

Page 3 of 3 

 
Closed Session 
11. Conference with Legal Counsel regarding existing litigation pursuant to California Government 

Code Section 54956.9(a); Number of cases: One (1) Case: Dennis Muelrath, et al. v. Sonoma-
Marin Area Rail Transit District (SMART) - Superior Court of California, County of Sonoma - SCV-
271787  
 

12. Report Out Closed Session 
 
13. Next Board of Directors Meeting, November 20, 2024 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood Highway, 

1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954 
 

14. Adjournment 
        ______ _____  ________________________ 
ACCOMODATIONS:   
Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, gender identity, religion, disability or 
family status. Upon request, SMART will provide for written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, disability-
related modification or other accommodation, to enable individuals to participate in and provide comments at/related to 
public meetings. Please submit a request, including your name, phone number and/or email address, and a description of 
the modification, accommodation, service, or alternative format requested at least two (2) days before the 
meeting.  Requests should be emailed to Leticia Rosas, Clerk of the Board at lrosas@sonomamarintrain.org or submitted 
by phone at (707) 794-3072. Requests made by mail SMART’s, 5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200, Petaluma, CA 94954 
must be received at least two days before the meeting. Requests will be granted whenever possible and resolved in favor 
of accessibility.  

Page 3 of 106

mailto:lrosas@sonomamarintrain.org


Page 1 of 10 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

September 18, 2024 – 1:30 PM 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 

Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Lucan called the meeting to order at 1:30pm. Directors Bagby, Colin, Coursey, Farac, Fudge, 
Garbarino, Pahre, Rabbitt, and Sackett was present. Directors Paulson and Rogers absent. 
 

2. Approval of the August 21, 2024, Board Meeting  
 
MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved approval of the August 21, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes as 
presented. Director Garbarino second. The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers 
absent). 
  

3. Board Members Announcements 
 
Director Colin asked if today’s meeting can be adjourned in the Memory of Al Boro. He was very 
active in his church and gave a lot to the community. 
 
Director Fudge stated that he was a great leader on SMART’s Board. There were hundreds of 
people who attended his retirement party, and he will be greatly missed. 
 
Director Pahre stated that he was the “voice of reason” when making decisions.  
 
Director Sackett stated that she asked him for advice, and he said, “play the long game”. 
 
Director Garbarino stated that she was fortunate to meet Mayor Boro while visiting his father’s 
birthplace in Italy. She always received valuable feedback during harsh board meetings. 
 
Director Coursey stated that Al Boro and Mike Kerns are responsible for him getting a job at 
SMART and having a seat at the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors. Mr. Boro was a solid 
political person and knew what was right for the community.  
 

Page 4 of 106



Page 2 of 10 

Director Rabbitt stated that Mr. Boro’s legacy lives on. He appreciated his long-term vision. 
 
Chair Lucan stated that on behalf of the SMART Board they are appreciated of his years of service 
and his fundamental work he did at SMART. He will greatly be missed.  
 

4. General Manager’s Report 
 
General Manager Cumins provided an overview on the following: 

▪ Ridership Update 

▪ Free Fare Analysis 
▪ Construction Update 
▪ Grant Update 

▪ Strategic Plan Open House 
▪ Highlight of the Month 

▪ Questions 
 
Ridership Update 
▪ August Average Weekday ridership: 3,390; 25% over August 2023  

▪ September Average Weekday ridership: 3,726; 33% over September 2023 
▪ August 2024 ridership 91,894; 27% higher than August 2023 – New SMART Monthly Record! 

 
Pathway Trip Analysis 

 August Pathway trips: 94,019  
 
Free Fare Analysis 
▪ Free fares program for youth and seniors began April 1, 2024 
▪ 30% ridership increase; April – July 2023 vs. April – July 2024 
▪ Demographics – 99% Youth; 144% Senior 
▪ 5% fare revenue increase; April – July 2023 vs. April – July 2024 
▪ 12% adult ridership increase 
▪ -23% fare per boarding  

▪ Decrease of IPPM - April – July 2023 (1.70) vs. April – July 2024 (1.52) 
 

Construction Update 
Petaluma: 

▪ Signal House Installation 
▪ New pathway along McDowell Blvd 
▪ McInnis-Smith Ranch Pathway: setting the pedestrian bridge 

Windsor Extension  

▪ New sidewalk at Aviation Blvd 
▪ Michell Lane Crossing Reconstruction 

 
Pathway Grant Award 
▪ Awarded $7M grant from the USDOT/Federal Highway Administration Safe Streets and Roads 

for All Program  

Page 5 of 106



Page 3 of 10 

▪ Grant fully funds 4.73 miles of pathway from Guerneville Road to Airport Blvd, connecting 
Santa Rosa and Unincorporated Sonoma County 

▪ Closes a significant gap in the system and connects to the pathway currently under 
construction to Windsor 

 
Strategic Plan Open House 
SMART Staff will hold an open house on Wednesday, September 25, 2024, 4:30 PM – 6:30 
PM, drop-in at the Petaluma Arts Center located at 230 Lakeville Street, Petaluma, next to the 
Petaluma Downtown SMART station. Members of the public can RSVP at: 
https://www.sonomamarintrain.org/strategic-plan 
 
Highlight of the Month 
General Manager Cumins announced that David Dominguez received Certificate of Achievement 
for completing SMART’s Signal Technician Training and Qualification Program. He joined SMART 
in January 2023 as a Signal Trainee and is the fourth Signal Trainee to complete the program. 
 
Comments 
Director Fudge stated that she has received feedback to the Mitchell Lane crossing being closed 
and the public remains positive for passenger service in Windsor. 
 
Director Farac suggested having an incentive for Teachers to ride for free. 
 

5. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 
Dani Sheehan- Meyer stated that the Friends of SMART had a successful travel transit tour from 
Sonoma County Airport Station to the Oakland on September 12, 2024. 
 
Rick Luttman said that he is frustrated that the Board has not placed the Jennings Avenue Crossing 
discussion on the agenda. 
 
Chair Lucan stated that he and Director Sackett attended the Marin County Senior Fair. The 
SMART booth received a lot of positive feedback and provided information to various people who 
were not aware of the various program’s SMART offers. 
 

6. Consent  
a. Accept Monthly Ridership Report – August 2024 
b. Approve Monthly Financial Status Report 
c. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Lease Agreement No. IT-SV-24-001 with Toshiba 

Business Solutions for the Provision and Maintenance of Leased Office Printers across 
SMART’s Facilities with an amount not-to-exceed $234,000 

d.   Adopt a Resolution Reaffirming and Updating the SMART Title VI Program and 
Nondiscrimination Policy  

 
Chair Lucan asked for Board and public comments on the proposed Consent Agenda. 
 
MOTION: Director Garbarino moved approval of Consent Agenda as presented. Director Rabbitt 
second. The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers absent) 

Page 6 of 106

https://www.sonomamarintrain.org/strategic-plan


Page 4 of 10 

7. Petaluma North Station - Preparation for Passenger Service (Information) – Presented by Train 
Control Systems Manager, Aaron Parkes 
 
General Manager Cumins provided an overview of the following.  Highlights include: 
 
Petaluma North Station Preparation for Passenger Service 
▪ Petaluma North Station – Past System Closures 

o March 23 and 24, 2024 to install gauntlet track 
o April 13 and 14, 2024 for crossing reconstruction at McDowell Blvd 

▪ Preparation for Passenger Service 
o A major step in preparing the station for service involves a “cutover” of SMART’s safety 

critical Railroad Systems. 
o This work will affect the railroad between Rohnert Park Station and Novator San Marin 

Station  
o Staff recommends a full weekend system closure to complete the work. A bus bridge likely 

impractical  
o Staff will provide a 30-day notice with an extensive communication campaign 

 
General Manager Cumins introduced Train Control Systems Manager, Aaron Parkes who provided 
a presentation which is located on SMART’s website.  Highlights include: 

 
▪ SMART Railroad Systems 

o Train Control Systems 
o Grade Crossing Warning Systems 
o Fiber-Optic Network 

▪ Preparation for Passenger Service 
o Extensive changes to SMART’s Railroad Systems will be made at multiple locations 
o Federal Regulations require that SMART perform testing after making changes to Railroad 

Systems, and prior to carrying passengers 
o To perform the necessary tests, SMART is currently planning to suspend service over an 

upcoming weekend in late 2024, with additional overnight testing anticipated 
o A weekend service suspension would allow sufficient time for testing 
o SMART maintenance staff could also take advantage of the suspension and perform other 

tasks on the railroad that can benefit from a lack of train traffic 
▪ Service Suspension – Test Activities 

o SMART will be calibrating and setting up Railroad Systems, and operating a test train 
between Cotati and Petaluma Downtown stations  

o The public can expect to: 1) Hear the train horn near the Petaluma North station; 2) hear 
the bells and see flashing lights and gates activate at grade crossings; 3) hear the bell 
onboard SMART’s train as it operates; and 4) See roadway flaggers performing traffic 
control near the Petaluma North Station 

o SMART will operate a period of pre-revenue service at the Petaluma North Station 

▪ Questions 
 

Comments  
Director Garbarino congratulated staff for the work that will be completed in a short period of 
time.  

Page 7 of 106



Page 5 of 10 

Director Pahre suggested having signs made for the train that say “test train” to inform the public.  
 
Director Rabbitt asked for clarification of the train horn in Quiet Zone areas.  Mr. Parkes 
confirmed that the public will hear the train horn despite the Quiet Zone when testing is 
occurring, hoping the testing happens during the day. 
 
Director Coursey stated that this is an example of all the work that happens to provide a SMART 
station. He suggested having the presentation on SMART’s website to inform the public. 
 
Vice Chair Bagby suggested making a YouTube video to inform the public and social media.   
 

8. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Property Purchase Agreement 
Between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District and Petaluma Corona Station, LP for the 
purchase of a 1.2-acre parcel in Petaluma adjacent to the Petaluma North Station for $1,307,750, 
and any documents reasonably necessary to complete the purchase transaction – Presented by 
General Manager Cumins 
 
General Manager Cumins provided an overview presentation which is located on SMART’s 
website.  Highlights include: 
 
Petaluma North Parking Lot Purchase 
▪ Project Parcel Overlay 
▪ Petaluma North Property Purchase 

o The 1.2-acre parcel to provide station parking for SMART by Petaluma Corona Station LP 
as part of their larger affordable housing project.  

o The transfer was to be at no cost to SMART upon the financial closing of their adjacent 
housing project.  

o Petaluma Corona Station LP has not yet closed on financing for their housing project and 
SMART needs to move forward with construction of station parking.  

o Staff recommends purchasing property to move forward with the project. As part of the 
purchase Agreement, Petaluma Corona Station LP will reimburse SMART for the property 
purchase price contingent upon closing on their construction financing for their housing 
project. 

▪ Property Purchase Description 
o 1.2 acres (52,272 sq. feet) 
o Located on a portion of a 6.56-acre parcel to be subdivided at 890 N. McDowell Blvd in 

Petaluma 

▪ Property Purchase Price 
o $1,307,750 ($25.02 per sq ft) 
o Owner agrees to sell property $1,307,750 and to reimburse SMART contingent upon 

closing on their construction financing for their housing project 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-31 authorizing the General Manager to 
execute a Property Purchase Agreement Between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
and Petaluma Corona Station, LP for a 1.2-acre parcel adjacent to the Petaluma North Station for 
$1,307,750. 
 

Page 8 of 106



Page 6 of 10 

Comments 
Director Rabbitt thanked staff for expediting the construction of the project. He asked if there 
has been an exchange of funds for this project. General Manager Cumins responded that funds 
have not been exchanged. Director Rabbitt stated that SMART is taking a risk for moving forward 
with the construction of the parking lot, however the cost to do it later would be much higher.  
 
Director Sackett asked if the closing date is October 1, 2024, for this property purchase.  General 
Manager Cumins responded yes.  
 
MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to 
Execute a Property Purchase Agreement Between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 
and Petaluma Corona Station, LP for the purchase of a 1.2-acre parcel in Petaluma adjacent to 
the Petaluma North Station for $1,307,750, and any documents reasonably necessary to 
complete the purchase transaction as presented. Director Farac second. The motion carried 10-0 
(Directors Paulson and Rogers absent). 
 

9. Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to Reduce the Fiscal Year 
transfer to Capital Reserves to purchase 1.2 acres of land for the Petaluma North Station Parking 
Lot (Budget Amendment #2) – Presented by Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop 
 
Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop provided a presentation which is located on SMART’s 
website. This amendment is needed for the purchase of a parcel of land for the Petaluma North 
Station. Highlights include: 
 

  Budget Amendment #2 - Petaluma North Station Parking Lot  
▪ The purchase of 1.2-acre parcel for a parking lot 
▪ The purchase cost is $1,307,750 without closing costs 
▪ 2024 Adopted Budget allocated $2 million to Capital Reserves 

o The purchase of this land would leave $692,250 that would be contributed for FY 25 
instead of $2 million 

▪ Funds would be repaid upon financial close of the developer’s housing project 
▪ Capital Reserve balance after this action would be $11,317,250 vs $12,625,000 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-30 for Budget Amendment #2. 
 
Comments 
Director Coursey asked if the amount of capital reserves for Fiscal Year 2024-25 will be $700k 
more than last fiscal year. Ms. McKillop responded yes.  
 
MOTION: Director Garbarino moved to Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 
Adopted Budget to Reduce the Fiscal Year transfer to Capital Reserves to purchase 1.2 acres of 
land for the Petaluma North Station Parking Lot (Budget Amendment #2) as presented. Director 
Rabbitt second. The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers absent). 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 106



Page 7 of 10 

10. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Change Order 07 to Construction 
Contract No. CV-BB-23-004 with Stacy and Witbeck/Ghilotti Bros. a Joint Venture in the amount 
of $1,982,766 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $34,750,501.30 to complete the construction 
of a parking lot at the Petaluma North Station – Presented by Senior Engineer, Michael 
Wiltermood 
 
Senior Engineer, Michael Wiltermood stated that the item before the board is to execute Change 
Order 07 to Contract No. CV-BB-23-004 with Stacy and Witbeck/Ghilotti Bros. a Joint Venture in 
the amount of $1,982,766. 
 
Change Order 07 will allow construction of the 1–2-acre parking lot with 115 parking spots with 
8 EV charging stations, 12 bicycle lockers, 12 bicycle racks and kiss-n-ride section for the Petaluma 
North Station.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-29 authorizing the General Manager to 
execute Change Order 07 with Stacy and Witbeck/ Ghilotti Bros in the amount of $1,982,766 for 
a total not-to-exceed amount of $34,750,501.30. 

 
Comments 
Director Fudge asked for clarification of the EV parking stalls. Mr. Wiltermood responded that 
there is a potential of having 24 EV charging stations.  
 
Vice Chair Bagby asked if there will be DC fast charging in the future. Mr. Wiltermood said that it 
will have to be evaluated. 
 
Duane Bellinger stated that this is an excellent purchase price of the property. 
 
Rick Luttman asked what the contingent plans for the purchase are if the developer does 
reimburse the property.  General Manager Cumins responded that there is a level of risk, however 
hopeful that the developer will follow through. 
 
Chair Lucan suggested having a discussion to establish a policy for the first EV charging station. 
 
Director Rabbitt stated that there is a need to have an EV charging plan since people are 
purchasing more electric vehicles. He thanked General Manager Cumins for the clarification to 
Mr. Luttman’s question and said that there is a little risk taking the property upfront, however 
the risk can be higher when it is completed later with higher construction price and disrupting 
passengers service.  
 
MOTION: Director Pahre moved to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to 
Execute Change Order 07 to Construction Contract No. CV-BB-23-004 with Stacy and 
Witbeck/Ghilotti Bros. a Joint Venture in the amount of $1,982,766 for a total not-to-exceed 
amount of $34,750,501.30 to complete the construction of a parking lot at the Petaluma North 
Station as presented. Director Fudge second. The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and 
Rogers absent). 
 
 

Page 10 of 106



Page 8 of 10 

11. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Agreement No. CV-PS-24-006 
with CocoConsult, LLC for as-needed project advisory and cost estimating services to support 
design and construction activities in an amount not-to-exceed $1,500,000 and a term of 3 years, 
and two one-year options to extend– Presented by Senior Engineer, Michael Wiltermood 

 
Senior Engineer, Michael Wiltermood stated that the item before the Board is to approve 
Resolution No. 2024-28 authorizing the General Manager to execute Agreement No. CV-PS-24-
006 with CoCoConsult for as-needed project advisory and cost estimating services to support 
design and construction activities. 
 
A Request for Proposal was issued on July 8, 2024. SMART received seven (7) proposals on August 
7, 2024.  A selection committee evaluated each proposal and conducted interviews. They selected 
CoCoConsult to be the highest based on the evaluation criteria.  

 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-28 authorizing the General Manager to 
execute an Agreement with CoCoConsult in the amount of $1,500,000. 

 
MOTION: Director Garbarino moved to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to 
Execute Agreement No. CV-PS-24-006 with CocoConsult, LLC for as-needed project advisory and 
cost estimating services to support design and construction activities in an amount not-to-exceed 
$1,500,000 and a term of 3 years, and two one-year options to extend as presented. Director 
Farac second. The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers absent). 

 
12. Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to roll forward additional 

funds from Fiscal Year 2024 into Fiscal Year 2025 to increase appropriations authority by 
$4,814,561 (Budget Amendment #3) – Presented by Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop 
 
Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop provided a presentation which is located on SMART’s 
website. This amendment addresses the need to shift revenues from FY24 and increase 
expenditure authority for expenses related to the Windsor Systems Project and the McInnis to 
Smith Ranch Pathway Project. Highlights include: 
 

  Budget Amendment #3 – Roll Forward of Funds from Fiscal Year 2024 to 2025 
 Windsor Extension Systems Project:    

▪ Rolling forward $3,394,509 of Interregional Transportation Improvement Program 
(ITIP) funds from FY24 to FY25 

▪ Rolling forward $250,000 of the Federal Rail Administration Consolidated Rail 
Infrastructure and Safety Improvement (CRISI) grant from FY24 to FY25  

 
McInnis to Smith Ranch Pathway Construction: 

▪ Rolling $207,835 of Quick Strike Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
(CMAQ) funds from FY24 to FY25 

▪ Rolling $207,835 of Local Partnership Program (LPP) funds from FY24 to FY25 
▪ Rolling $754,381 in Measure Q funds from FY24 to FY25 

 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-32 for Budget Amendment #3. 

 

Page 11 of 106



Page 9 of 10 

MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved to Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted 
Budget to roll forward additional funds from Fiscal Year 2024 into Fiscal Year 2025 to increase 
appropriations authority by $4,814,561 (Budget Amendment #3) as presented. Director Sackett 
second. The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers absent). 

 
13. Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to roll forward Local 

Partnership Program (LPP) funds from Fiscal Year 2024 into Fiscal Year 2025 (Budget Amendment 
#4) – Presented by Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop 
 
Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop provided a presentation which is located on SMART’s 
website. This amendment will allow SMART to program unspent Local Partnership Program funds 
in Fiscal Year 2025. Highlights include: 

▪ Program $115,137 of unspent Local Partnership Program into Fiscal Year 2025 to use on 
the SMART right-of-way 

▪ Funds to be used to purchase Hi-Rail Trucks 
▪ Will allow to free up $115,137 of Measure Q funds 

 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-33 for Budget Amendment #4. 
 
MOTION: Director Colin moved to Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted 
Budget to roll forward Local Partnership Program (LPP) funds from Fiscal Year 2024 into Fiscal 
Year 2025 (Budget Amendment #4) as presented. Director Coursey second. The motion carried 
10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers absent). 
 

14. Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to de-budget 5337 Federal 
State of Good Repair Funds in Fiscal Year 2025 and defer projects to Fiscal Year 2025 (Budget 
Amendment #5) – Presented by Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop   
 
Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop provided a presentation which is located on SMART’s 
website. This amendment will de-budget 5337 Federal State of Good Repair Funds in Fiscal Year 
2025 and defer projects to Fiscal Year 2026. Highlights include: 

▪ 5337 – Federal State of Good Repair Funds programmed in Fiscal Year 2025 
o $6,350,000 – 5337 Federal State of Good Repair 
o $850,528 – Measure Q  
o $340,634 – State of California State of Good Repair Funds match 

▪ Need to defer projects  
o 13 total projects programmed, deferring 7 and 6 need to move forward 

• Need to use the $850,528 in Measure Q programmed for match 
• Need to use the $340,634 in state funds programmed for match 
• Will need additional $220,394 in Measure Q funds from fund balance 

 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-34 for Budget Amendment #5. 
 
MOTION: Director Sackett moved to Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted 
Budget to de-budget 5337 Federal State of Good Repair Funds in Fiscal Year 2025 and defer 
projects to Fiscal Year 2025 (Budget Amendment #5) as presented. Director Garbarino second. 
The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers absent). 

Page 12 of 106



Page 10 of 10 

15. Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to increase revenues and 
expenditure authority for Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to add funding and increase 
expenditure authority for freight (Budget Amendment #6) – Presented by Chief Financial Officer, 
Heather McKillop 
 
Chief Financial Officer, Heather McKillop provided a presentation which is located on SMART’s 
website. This amendment will add funding and increase expenditure authority for freight. 
Highlights include: 

▪ SMART received $350,000 from a settlement related to damages to Black Point Bridge 
▪ Programming $45,816 in State Shoreline Grant funds for ties ($25,000) and crossing work 

($20,817) 
▪ For a total of $385,816 

 
Comments 
Director Fudge asked if SMART received funds from Caltrain from the vehicle storage.  General 
Manager Cumins responded yes and was included in the fiscal year 2025 budget. SMART will also 
be receiving a $4 million grant for freight from the State. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-35 for Budget Amendment #6. 
 
MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved to Adopt a Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted 
Budget to increase revenues and expenditure authority for Fiscal Year 2025 Adopted Budget to 
add funding and increase expenditure authority for freight (Budget Amendment #6) as presented. 
Director Farac second. The motion carried 10-0 (Directors Paulson and Rogers absent). 
 

16. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, October 16, 2024 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood 
Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954 
 

17. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned in the Memory of Al Boro at 2:38pm 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

  
      
 Leticia Rosas 
 Clerk of the Board   

 
Approved on:      

 

Page 13 of 106



  

 

 

 

 

Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  
 
Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
 
 
Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 
 
David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 
 

 

 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

 

 
5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6a 

 
 
October 16, 2024 

  
 Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors  

5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Ridership Report – September 2024 

 
Dear Board Members: 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  Accept Monthly Ridership Report  
 
SUMMARY: 
We are presenting the monthly ridership report for activity for the month of September 
2024. This report shows trends in ridership for SMART by tracking Total riders Average 
Weekday riders, and Average Saturday riders, Average Sunday/Holiday riders, as well as 
bicycles and mobility devices on board the trains. The report also includes total users 
counted on the SMART Pathway for the month, and total riders on the SMART Connect 
shuttles. 
 
With the transition to the Automatic Passenger Counter (APC) in October 2022, SMART 
has a highly accurate method of tracking boardings and alightings at stations that does 
not depend on manual counts by the conductors. The APC system has been tested and 
validated at a 99% accuracy level, and has been certified for passenger count use by the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA). Both APC-based ridership and fare-based collection 
rider counts are shown in the attached report to give a full picture of ridership. APC-
based ridership captures all riders, including riders with passes who neglect to tag on or 
off, riders who fail to activate their mobile app tickets, as well as categories of riders such 
as children under five years old. 
 
This report compares the most recent month to the same month during the prior year, 
as is standard industry practice for tracking trends over time. These reports also note 
relevant details associated with fare program discount usage and trends in riders 
bringing bicycles onboard as well as riders who use mobility devices. 

 
SMART’s ridership data through September 2024 is posted on the SMART website 
(https://sonomamarintrain.org/RidershipReports). 
 

 FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
REVIEWED BY:   [ x ] Finance ___/s/______       [ x ] Counsel _____/s/_____ 

 
 Respectfully, 
 
    /s/ 
 Emily Betts 
 Planning Manager 
 
 Attachment(s):  Monthly Ridership Report – September 2024 

Page 14 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/
https://sonomamarintrain.org/RidershipReports


SMART Ridership Report 
Board of Directors  

Page 1 of 4 
 

SEPTEMBER 2024 SMART RIDERSHIP REPORT 

September 2024 saw continued strong ridership, with average weekday ridership at 3,659, up 1% 

over August. Average Saturday and Sunday ridership decreased by 5% and increased by 10%, 

respectively, from the previous month. Total monthly ridership was 92,855, a 36% increase over last 

September, 47% over September 2019 (pre-COVID), and a new monthly ridership record for SMART. 

Average Saturday and Sunday ridership for September2024 reached 46% and 76%, respectively, over 

September 2023.  

As a reminder, SMART modified services in March 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, with 

weekend service annulled and weekday service reduced to 16 trips. In May 2021, SMART added back 

10 weekday trips. Saturday service was restored in May 2021, and Sunday service in May 2022. In 

June 2022, SMART added 10 additional weekday trips, and in October 2022, SMART added 2 

additional midday trips, for a schedule of 38 trips per weekday. In May 2023, SMART added two 

evening trips on Friday and Saturday, known as the Starlighter. On October 2nd, SMART suspended 

the Starlighter service but increased weekend service, running 16 trips total on both Saturday and 

Sunday. On August 12, 2024, SMART added two additional round trips for a total of 42 trips each 

weekday.  

The tables below present data for September 2023 and 2024 year-over-year, and the Fiscal Year to 

date (July-September). Ridership for the fiscal year to date (FY25) is up 30% over the same time 

period for FY24.  

MONTHLY TOTALS YEAR-OVER-YEAR SEPTEMBER 2023 SEPTEMBER 2024 % Change 

Ridership 68,506 92,855 36% 

Fare Payments (Clipper + App Only) 53,457 49,896 -7% 

        

Average Weekday Ridership 2,812 3,659 30% 

Average Saturday Ridership 1,316 1,922 46% 

Average Sunday Ridership  1,139 1,999 76% 

        

Bicycles 10,453 13,738 31% 

Mobility Devices 156 233 49% 

*Discrepancy between total ridership change and fare payments change due to launch of Free Fare 

program for youth and seniors on April 1. 

FISCAL YEAR (Jul - Sep) Fiscal Year 2024 Fiscal Year 2025 % Change 

Ridership 206,456 272,771 32% 

Fare Payments (Clipper + App Only) 153,481 147,151 -4% 

        

Average Weekday Ridership 2,685 3,396 26% 

Average Saturday Ridership  1,396 2,019 45% 

Average Sunday Ridership  1,186 1,946 64% 

        

Bicycles 31,304 37,737 21% 

Mobility Devices 568 736 30% 
Page 15 of 106



SMART Ridership Report 
Board of Directors  

Page 2 of 4 
 

SEPTEMBER 2024 SMART RIDERSHIP REPORT 

The following charts compare the average weekday ridership, average weekend ridership, boardings by day 

of week, and monthly totals for FY24-FY25. 

 

 

 

8
8

,0
2

2

9
1

,8
9

4

9
2

,8
5

5

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

SMART Monthly Ridership (FY24 - FY25) 

FY24 FY25

2
,5

3
1

2
,7

0
7

2
,8

1
2

2
,7

5
3

2
,6

8
6

2
,6

4
1

2
,5

8
9

2
,4

9
2

2
,6

8
4 3
,0

5
2

3
,1

7
6

3
,1

2
0

3
,1

6
3 3

,6
5

9

3
,6

5
9

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

SMART Average Weekday Ridership (FY24 - FY25) 

FY24 FY25

Page 16 of 106



SMART Ridership Report 
Board of Directors  

Page 3 of 4 
 

SEPTEMBER 2024 SMART RIDERSHIP REPORT 

SMART Connect Program 
SMART currently operates two on-demand shuttles, SMART Connect Airport and SMART Connect 
Larkspur. SMART Connect Airport, launched in June 2023, serves the SMART Sonoma County Airport 
station, the Charles M. Schultz Sonoma County Airport, and the surrounding area. SMART Connect 
Larkspur, launched in June 2024, serves the SMART Larkspur station, the Golden Gate Larkspur Ferry 
Terminal, and the surrounding Larkspur Landing area. The goal of the SMART Connect program is to 
facilitate first-and-last mile connections from SMART stations through the provision of a reliable on-
demand shuttle that SMART riders can use for transit transfers, work and school commutes, and 
other destinations. SMART Connect uses microtransit software from The Routing Company called 
Ride Pingo, which allows user to pre-book trips or book a ride on-demand. Riders can also book by 
phone or walk on, space available. 
 
Total September monthly ridership for the SMART Connect program was 1,156 riders. 
 

 

  

413

743

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

SMART Connect Monthly Ridership

SMART Connect Airport SMART Connect Larkspur

Page 17 of 106



SMART Ridership Report 
Board of Directors  

Page 4 of 4 
 

SEPTEMBER 2024 SMART RIDERSHIP REPORT 

SMART Pathway 
SMART has installed 10 counters on the Pathway, with five in Marin County and five in Sonoma 
County. The counters differentiate between bicycles and pedestrians, and track data by time of day 
and day of the week.  The counters cannot distinguish between unique users, but based on the 
estimated average trip length of 3 miles, and the average spacing between counters of 4.6 miles, the 
counts are considered an accurate estimate of monthly pathway usage. As additional pathway 
segments are constructed, counters will be place on those segments to measure pathway usage. To 
date, count data has shown a fairly even split between pedestrians and bicyclists. 
 
In September 2024, SMART counted 83,987 users on the pathway, which was a 24% increase over 
last year. 
 

 

 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

SMART Monthly Pathway Counts

Bicyclists (prior year) Pedestrians (prior year) Bicyclists Pedestrians

Page 18 of 106



  

 

 

 

 

Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  
 
Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
 
 
Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 
 
David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 
 

 

 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

 

 
5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6b 

 
October 16, 2024 
 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Financial Status 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Monthly Financial Reports – July /August 2024 
 
SUMMARY: 
This report provides information for the first (2) two months of Fiscal Year (FY) 
2025. This information includes the Board Adopted Budget and Budget 
Amendment #1. 
 
Budgeted revenues and actual expenditures for both passenger rail and freight are 
provided in separate charts in the attached document.  The actual column reflects 
revenues and expenditures for (2) two months of FY 2025 (July – August). In 
addition, for passenger rail, we have shown more detail regarding sales tax and 
fare revenues to show current and comparative information over the last five 
years (FY 2021 – FY 2025). Sales tax for the first two months in FY 2025 reflects a 
negative balance.  There are two reasons for this negative balance (1) due to the 
way sales taxes are recorded on SMART’s books, July’s revenues aren’t known until 
September and August revenues until October (2) there was a prior period 
adjustment that was reflected in August which created the negative balance.  
 
Information on the approved budget, actual expenditures, and remaining budget 
have been provided.  Please keep in mind that expenditures do not always occur 
on a straight-line basis, many large expenditures such as debt service only occur 
on specific intervals.    
 
We have also included information regarding SMART’s investment policy, where 
our funds are being held, and how much is currently being held.  In addition, we 
have shown the current obligations, reserves, and fund balance requirements for 
FY 2025.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
   /s/ 
Heather McKillop 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
Attachment(s): 

  1)  Monthly Financial Status Report 
  2)  Contract Summary Report  

Page 19 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


1 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATUS 
July & August 2024 

 FY 2024-25 
Approved 
Budget + 

Amendment #1 Actual
 Amount Over / 
(Under) Budget 

Revenues

Passenger Rail

Sales/Use Taxes 50,426,000$      (1,477)$            (50,427,477)$     

Interest and Lease 
Earnings 1,979,636$        166,936$         (1,812,700)$       

Miscellaneous/ Other 
Revenue 295,921$           90,643$           (205,278)$          

Passenger Fares 2,215,290$        434,410$         (1,780,880)$       

Parking Fares 11,400$             1,089$             (10,311)$            

Shuttle Fares 1,200$               368$                (832)$  

State Grants 50,961,826$      -$  (50,961,826)$     

Federal Funds 14,224,841$      -$  (14,224,841)$     

Other Governments 3,305,915$        -$  (3,305,915)$       

Passenger Rail 123,422,029$    691,969$         (122,730,060)$   

Page 1 of 9 Page 20 of 106



PASSENGER REVENUES 

Measure Q Sales Tax 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 

Fiscal Year 2021-2025 Net Sales Tax Comparison 
(by Quarter) 

 $(10,000,000)

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25

Sales Tax Comparison - Cumulative

July - Sept. Oct - Dec. Jan. - March April - June

Time Period July - Sept. Oct - Dec. Jan. - March April - June

FY 25 Forecasted Sales Tax 3,900,000$    12,500,000$    12,600,000$    21,426,000$    
Actual (1,477)$          
Difference 3,901,477$    

Page 2 of 9 Page 21 of 106



Fiscal Year 2021-2025 Cumulative Sales Tax Comparison 

 $(10,000,000)

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

July - Sept. Oct - Dec. Jan. - March April - June

Sales Tax Comparison

FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25

Page 3 of 9 Page 22 of 106



Fiscal Year 2021-2025 Fare Revenue Comparison 

Fiscal Year 2021-2025 Monthly Fare Revenue Comparison 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

FY21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25

Fiscal Year 2021 - Fiscal Year 2025 Fare Comparison
Actuals

Page 4 of 9 Page 23 of 106



5 

PASSENGER EXPENDITURES 

 FY 2024-25 
Approved Budget Actual

 Amount Over / 
(Under) Budget 

Passenger Expenditures

Administration

Salaries & Benefits 7,180,063$           1,109,415$      (6,070,648)$         

Services & Supplies 12,371,360$         695,357$         (11,676,003)$       

Administration Subtotal 19,551,423$         1,804,772$      (17,746,651)$       

Operations

Salaries & Benefits 19,720,161$         2,904,143$      (16,816,018)$       

Services & Supplies 7,709,110$           679,135$         (7,029,975)$         

Operations Subtotal 27,429,271$         3,583,278$      (23,845,993)$       

Capital

Salaries & Benefits 1,909,851$           264,822$         (1,645,029)$         

Services & Supplies 7,690,254$           471,377$         (7,218,877)$         

Capital Subtotal 9,600,105$           736,199$         (8,863,906)$         

Total Passenger Expenditures 56,580,799$         6,124,249$      (50,456,550)$       

Passenger (Capitalized) Expenditures

Facilities 65,673,232$         10,940,877$    (54,732,355)$       

Infrastructure 2,490,587$           158,217$         (2,332,370)$         

Equipment 3,201,568$           -$  (3,201,568)$         

Nonrevenue vehicles 921,654$              400,875$         (520,779)$            

Revenue vehicles -$  -$  -$  

Land -$  -$  -$  

Other Governments 1,133,039$           -$  (1,133,039)$         

Total Passenger (Capitalized) Expenditures 72,287,041$         11,499,969$    (61,920,111)$       

Passenger Expenditures + Capitalized 128,867,840$       17,624,218$    (112,376,661)$     

Page 5 of 9 Page 24 of 106



FREIGHT REVENUES 

 FY 2024-25 
Approved 

Budget Actual
 Amount Over / 
(Under) Budget 

Revenues

Freight 

State Operating/ 
Capital Grant (42341) 393,549$         (393,549)$            

State Shortline Grant 83,960$           (83,960)$              

Freight Movement Fees 700,000$         144,248$         (555,752)$            

Leases 270,000$         29,955$           (240,045)$            

Freight Storage 104,800$         15,376$           (89,424)$              

45(g) Tax Credit & 
Misc. Revenues 253,000$         250,580$         (2,420)$                

Freight 1,805,309$      440,159$         (1,805,309)$         

Page 6 of 9
Page 25 of 106



FREIGHT EXPENDITURES 

 FY 2024-25 
Approved Budget Actual

 Amount Over 
/ (Under) 
Budget 

Freight Expenditures

Administration

Salaries & Benefits -$  -$  -$  

Services & Supplies -$  -$  -$  

Administration Subtotal -$  -$  -$  

Operations

Salaries & Benefits 870,099$              118,400$         (751,699)$        

Services & Supplies 935,210$              60,327$           (874,883)$        

Operations Subtotal 1,805,309$           178,727$         (1,626,582)$     

Capital

Salaries & Benefits -$  -$  -$  

Services & Supplies -$  -$  -$  

Capital Subtotal -$  -$  -$  

Total Freight Expenditures 1,805,309$           178,727$         (1,626,582)$     

Freight (Capitalized) Expenditures

Facilities -$  -$  

Infrastructure -$  -$  

Equipment -$  -$  

Nonrevenue vehicles -$  -$  

Revenue vehicles -$  -$  

Land -$  -$  

-$  -$  

Total Freight (Capitalized) Expenditures -$  -$  -$  

Freight Expenditures + Capitalized 1,805,309$        178,727$         (1,626,582)$     

Page 7 of 9 Page 26 of 106



CAPITAL PROJECTS 

Capital Project Report Aug-24

Total Project 
Budget

Expended in 
Prior 

Fiscal Years

Budgeted in 
FY25

Remaining to be 
Budgeted in Future 

Years
Project Status

Extension: Windsor Civil 55,560,845$    42,234,837$ 18,006,293$     (4,680,285)$              Under construction.

Extension: Windsor Systems 18,102,142$    8,392,880$    5,867,695$       3,841,567$                Under Construction

Extension: Windsor Pedestrian 
Undercrossing

4,300,000$      2,127,124$    2,172,876$       0$  Under construction as part of the 
Windsor Extension project.

Town of Windsor Util ity Crossing 407,100$          -$                407,100$           -$  Under construction as part of the 
Windsor Extension project.

Extension: Healdsburg 160,400,000$  -$                3,250,000$       157,150,000$           
Preparation for progressive design-
build process beginning early this 
fiscal year

Station: Petaluma North 13,210,333$    3,780,341$    9,334,489$        $ 95,503 Construction is in progress

SGR: McDowell Grade Crossing 3,825,275$      1,341,224$    2,490,587$        $ (6,536) Construction is in progress

City of Petaluma North McDowell 
Paving Project

886,712$          174,760$       711,952$           0$  Construction is in progress

Pathway: Golf Course to Bellevue 
and Southpoint to Penngrove 
Construction

19,876,912$    3,947,547$    16,847,271$     (917,906)$  Construction is in progress

Pathway: Design for 7 Segments in 
Marin and Sonoma Counties 3,936,755$      2,408,679$    1,304,423$       223,653$  

Conducting engineering design to 
prepare for construction, also 
pursuing environmental permits.

Pathway: Design for 5 Segments in 
Marin County 6,323,781$      1,663,579$    4,038,421$       621,781$  

Conducting engineering design to 
prepare for construction, also 
pursuing environmental permits.

Pathway: Construction for Mcinnis 
to Smith Ranch

5,835,608$      1,721,712$    2,448,116$       1,665,780$                Under construction.

Pathway: Joe Rodota Trail 677,716$          168,407$       465,985$           43,324$  Construction planned to start in 
FY25.

Pathway: Hanna Ranch to Vintage 6,084,521$      -$                200,000$           5,884,521$                
Currently in design and permitting. 
Project is not fully funded for 
construction

Pathway: Guernevil le Rd to Airport 
Blvd Pathway Construction 14,618,729$    17,325$         200,000$           14,401,404$             

Pursuing NEPA clearance, 
construction moved to a future 
year.

Puerto Suello Pathway Design and 
Permitting 708,227$          -$                708,227$           -$  

Request for Proposal (RFP) is 
complete, preparing for 
procurement

Schellvil le Grade Crossing Repair 100,000$          -$                100,000$           -$  Construction planned for fall .
Brazos Branch Bridge Repairs 
(Phase 2) 67,920$            -$                67,920$             -$  

Currently purchasing bridge 
timbers for this phase.

PASSENGER RAIL PROJECTS

FREIGHT RAIL PROJECTS

Page 8 of 9 Page 27 of 106



INVESTMENTS 

Investments are guided by the SMART investment policy adopted each year with the budget.  
The policy outlines the guidelines and practices to be used in effectively managing SMART’s 
available cash and investment portfolio.  District funds that are not required for immediate cash 
requirements are to be invested in compliance with the California Code Section 53600, et seq. 

SMART uses the Bank of Marin for day-to-day cash requirements and for longer term 
investments the Sonoma County Treasury Pool is used.  This chart reflects a point in time versus 
a projection of future fund availability. 

Cash On Hand
Bank of Marin 11,844,865$   
Sonoma County Investment Pool 
*

91,391,914$   

Total Cash on Hand 103,236,779$ 

Reserves
Self-Insured 2,370,675$      
OPEB/ CalPERS 5,574,676$      
Operating Reserve 11,728,963$   
Capital Sinking Fund 12,625,000$   
Corridor Completion 7,000,000$      
Total Reserves 39,299,314$   

Cash Balance 63,937,465$   
Less: Current Encumbrances (52,367,289)$  
Balance 11,570,176$   
Less: Estimated FY24 Year-end 
Fund Balance

(53,975,272)$  

Remaining Balance (42,405,096)$  
* Doesn't include trustee accounts

Page 9 of 9 Page 28 of 106



Active contracts as of August 31, 2024

PASSENGER RAIL

Contractor Scope
 Fiscal Year 24/25

Projected 
A.J. Janitorial Service  $                                      9,140 
Alcohol & Drug Testing Services, LLC DOT and FRA-regulated Drug and Alcohol Testing Services 45,000$                                    
Allen, Glaessner, Hazelwood LLP Legal Services for Litigation and Rail Transit Issues 50,000$                                    
Alliant Insurance Services Insurance Brokerage and Risk Management Services 50,000$                                    
Asbury Environmental Services (AES) Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Waste Removal and Disposal Services 75$                                           
Atlas CopCo Compressors, LLC Air Compressor Maintenance Services 1,003$                                      
Bolt Staffing Service, Inc. Temporary Staffing Services 45,000$                                    
Bright Star Security, Inc. Security Patrol at SMART's Cal Park Tunnel 5,718$                                      
Cal Interpreting & Translations Real Time Translation and Related Services 13,000$                                    
Cinquini & Passarino, Inc. Right-of-Way Land Surveying and Related Services 7,773$                                      
Code 3 Entertainment Services, LLC Microtransit Operations and Maintenance Services 567,433$                                 
Construction Testing Services 189,625$                                 
Craft & Commerce 93,000$                                    
CSW/Stuber-Stroeh Engineering Group Design and Engineering Services for 5 MUP Segments in Marin County 683,104$                                 
CSW/Stuber-Stroeh Engineering Group Design and Engineering for Petaluma North Station, N. McDowell Grade Crossing, Segments 2 & 3 Pathway 382,800$                                 
Dr. Lance O'Connor Occupational Health Screening Services 5,000$                                      
Dudek Biological and Cultural Resource Monitoring 195,000$                                 
Dunnigan Psychological & Threat Assessments, LLC Employment-Related Psychological Evaluation Services 25,000$                                    
Eide Bailly LLP Financial Audit Services 61,110$                                    
Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria 20,000$                                    
Fehr & Peers Comprehensive Quality of Life and Impact Assessment 413,113$                                 
Foster & Foster (formerly Demsey, Filliger, & Associates, LLC) GASB Pension Compliance Services (Actuarial Calculations) 1,250$                                      
Front Signs (Square Signs, LLC) System-Wide Pathway Wayfinding Signage 599,447$                                 
Gary D. Nelson Associates, Inc. Temporary Staffing and Placement Services 55,000$                                    
George Hills Company, Inc. Third Party Claims Administration Services 30,000$                                    
Ghilotti Bros, Inc. Construction of NMP McInnis to Smith Ranch 431,864$                                 
Golden Five, LLC Microsoft 365 Consulting Services 1,563$                                      
Granicus, Inc. Media Streaming and Internet Broadcasting Services 13,503$                                    
Hanford A.R.C. Implementation and Monitoring, San Rafael Creek Riparian Enhancement Project 29,841$                                    
Hanford A.R.C. Maintenance and Monitoring the the Las Gallinas Creek Watershed Riparian Enhancement Planting 17,425$                                    
Hanson Bridgett LLP Legal Services - Union Negotiations 120,000$                                 
Intelligent Technology Solutions, LLC Maximo SaaS Development, Implementation, and Related Services 75,000$                                    
Khouri Consulting, LLC California State Legislative and Advocacy Services 120,000$                                 
Lewis, Brisbois, Bisgaard & Smith LLP Various legal services related to transit 65,000$                                    
Masabi LLC SMART Mobile Ticketing Pilot Project 30,000$                                    
MaxAccel FRA Regulatory Compliance Software 31,664$                                    
MaxAccel Learning Management System 15,832$                                    
Mickelson & Company, LLC 45G Tax Credit Advisory Services 15,035$                                    
Mission Linen Supply Employee Uniform Rentals 24,077$                                    
Mission Linen Supply Laundry and Dry Cleaning for SMART-Owned Uniforms 9,025$                                      
Modern Railway Systems, Inc. Monitoring and Maintenance  SMART's Communications Network and TDX System 15,726$                                    
Modern Railway Systems, Inc. Design and Construction of Systems Improvements for the Windsor Extension Project 5,350,845$                              
Modern Railway Systems, Inc. Real Time Train Arrival Digital Signage for Train Platforms 452,877$                                 
MuniServices, LLC Sales Tax Recovery Services 30,000$                                    
North Bay Bottling (Alex Ruiz Sr.) Drinking Water Delivery Service 3,260$                                      
North Bay Petroleum Provision of Fuel for DMUs 1,100,000$                              
Nossaman LLP Litigation, Rail Transit Issues, and other related legal services 180,000$                                 
Occupational Health Centers of CA Pre-Employment Evaluation Services 35,000$                                    
Oracle Fusion ERP System 329,413$                                 
Parodi Investigative Solutions Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services 25,000$                                    
PFM Financial Advisors, LLC Financial Advisory Services 5,000$                                      
Pitney Bowes, Inc. 701$                                         
Pivotal Vision, LLC 2,750$                                      
Portola Systems, Inc. SMART Station Network Maintenance and Configuration Services 271,543$                                 
RSE Corporation 42,500$                                    
Sierra-Cedar, LLC Oracle Enterprise Resources Planning Software 152,000$                                 
Sonoma County Fleet Operation Division Non-Revenue Fleet Vehicle Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Services 65,000$                                    
SPTJ Consulting, Inc. Network Monitoring and Support Services 202,419$                                 

Janitorial Services for all Stations Roblar, ROC and Fulton  $                                  9,140 

-$                                      

1,003$                                  

2,750$                                  

-$                                      

-$                                      

-$                                      

-$                                      

-$                                      

15,664$                                
1,319,190$                          

-$                                      

245,761$                             
234$                                     

10,000$                                
5,854$                                  
1,686$                                  

7,586$                                  

11,089$                                
29,148$                                

33,737$                                

Security Software Licensing / Rail Network
Lease for Mail Machine

Tribal Monitoring for Ground-Disturbing Activities - SoCo Pathway 6,097$                                  

-$                                      

13,503$                                
2,215$                                  
1,506$                                  

-$                                      

-$                                      
-$                                      
500$                                     

20,000$                                
51$                                       

Marketing and Community Outreach Services and Support
Construction Materials Testing Support Services

Civil Engineering, Design, and Land Surveying

250$                                     

187,723$                             

51,546$                                
1,371$                                  

-$                                      
500$                                     
-$                                      

-$                                      

266$                                     

15,035$                                

138,130$                             

-$                                      
-$                                      

Contract Summary

 Fiscal Year 24/25         
Actuals 

12,350$                                
-$                                      

-$                                      
-$                                      

30,516$                                
-$                                      

-$                                      

29,988$                                
1,906$                                  

2,400$                                  
-$                                      

-$                                      

-$                                      

Page 1 of 2
Page 29 of 106



Contractor Scope
 Fiscal Year 24/25

Projected 
 Fiscal Year 24/25         

Actuals 
Stacy and Witbeck, Inc. Design/Build Construction of Civil, Track & Structures of Windsor Extension 17,936,174$                            
Stacy and Witbeck/Ghilotti Bros, A Joint Venture Construction of Petaluma North Station Platform, Grade Crossing Reconstruction, and Pathway 22,871,960$                            
Stacy and Witbeck/Ghilotti Bros, A Joint Venture Paving Work for the City of Petaluma as Part of the Petaluma North Project 582,187$                                 
Survival CPR & First Aid, LLC First Aid and CPR Training, AED Compliance Program Management 11,300$                                    
TDG Engineering, Inc. Wayfinding System Planning and Design for the SMART Pathway 21,592$                                    
The Routing Company Furnish, Implement, and Maintain a Microtransit Software Platform 12,000$                                    
The Routing Company 6,200$                                      
Triangle Properties, Inc. SoCo Pathway Riparian Enhancement Implementation and Monitoring 39,080$                                    
Triangle Properties, Inc. 523,270$                                 
Triangle Properties, Inc. 41,932$                                    
United Construction Management Corp 160,083$                                 
Van Scoyoc Associates Federal Lobbying Services 30,000$                                    
Vista Broadband Networks, Inc. Broadband Services 9,000$                                      
Ward Levy Appraisal Group, Inc. Real Estate Appraisals and Related Services 4,950$                                      
WRA, Inc. As-Needed Environmental Consulting Services 78,900$                                    

TOTAL 55,130,943$                            

FREIGHT RAIL

Contractor Scope
 Fiscal Year 24/25

Projected 
Freight Rail Tracking Software Freight Rail Tracking Software 6,000$                                      
GATX Rail Locomotive Group, LLC Freight Locomotive Lease Agreement 48,200$                                    
HCI Systems, Inc. Fire Equipment Inspection and Certification 354$                                         
Hue & Cry, Inc. Security System at Schellville Depot 994$                                         
North Bay Petroleum Provision of Fuel for Freight Locomotives 90,000$                                    
Summit Signal, Inc. Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Services for Signal Equipment Along Brazos Branch 40,542$                                    
Summit Signal, Inc. Freight Call-Out Maintenance and Repair Services 6,565$                                      
Wine Country Sanitary, Inc. Portable Toilet Rental and Maintenance 1,600$                                      

TOTAL 194,255$                                 
Actuals-To-Date include invoices that have been approved, but may not have been processed in SMART's Financial System, as of August 31, 2024

-$                                      

-$                                      

2,100$                                  

28,333$                                

7,173,563$                          
6,937,212$                          

-$                                      

Helen Putnam Riparian Mitigation
Windsor Creek Riparian Enhancement

Social Media Campaign for SMART Connect

Construction Management Support Services

38,670$                                

12,950$                                
13,514$                                

2,477$                                  
394$                                     

414$                                     
8,921$                                  

-$                                      
-$                                      

5,821$                                  
16,368,094$                        

 Fiscal Year 24/25         
Actuals 

10,000$                                
1,500$                                  

-$                                      
7,166$                                  

-$                                      

-$                                      
2,844$                                  

Page 2 of 2
Page 30 of 106



  

 

 

 

  

Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  
 
Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
 
 
Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 
 
David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 
 

 

 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

 

 
5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6c 

October 16, 2024 
 
Sonoma- Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
SUBJECT: Master Funding Agreement Between Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) and Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 
District (SMART) 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt Resolution No. 2024-36 authorizing the General Manager or his 
Designee to execute a Master Funding Agreement with the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for planning, 
programming, transportation, transit, and land use or other projects. 
 
SUMMARY: 
This Master Funding Agreement between MTC and SMART provides for 
SMART to be eligible to receive funds and provides for terms and 
conditions for federally funded, state funded, and MTC funded projects 
that SMART may receive through MTC. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no direct fiscal impact as a result of executing 
this document.   The document allows for SMART to receive funds from 
MTC in the future. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
    /s/ 
Heather McKillop 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
Attachment(s):   

1) Resolution No. 2024-36  
2) Master Agreement between MTC and SMART 

 

Page 31 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


Resolution No. 2024-36 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

October 16, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
MASTER FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION AND SMART 
              

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission has asked SMART to enter into 

a Master Funding Agreement regarding the planning, programming, transportation, transit, land 
use, and other projects for Fiscal Years 2024 - 2034; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Master Funding Agreement provides for policies, procedures, terms and 

conditions for receiving funds through the Metropolitan Transportation Commission; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Board of Directors authorizes the General 

Manager or his designee to execute a Master Funding Agreement with the  Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission regarding the planning, programming, transportation, transit, land 
use, and other projects for Fiscal Years 2024 – 2034. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin Area 
Rail Transit District held on the 16th day of October 2024, by the following vote:  

 
DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

 

              ________________________________         

Eric Lucan, Chair, Board of Directors              
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District   

ATTEST:  
 

_____________________________________________ 

Leticia Rosas, Clerk of the Board of Directors                  
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

 

Page 32 of 106



Page 33 of 106



Page 34 of 106



Page 35 of 106



Page 36 of 106



Page 37 of 106



Page 38 of 106



Page 39 of 106



Page 40 of 106



Page 41 of 106



Page 42 of 106



Page 43 of 106



Page 44 of 106



Page 45 of 106



Page 46 of 106



Page 47 of 106



Page 48 of 106



Page 49 of 106



Page 50 of 106



Page 51 of 106



Page 52 of 106



Page 53 of 106



Page 54 of 106



Page 55 of 106



Page 56 of 106



Page 57 of 106



Page 58 of 106



Page 59 of 106



Page 60 of 106



Page 61 of 106



Page 62 of 106



Page 63 of 106



Page 64 of 106



Page 65 of 106



Page 66 of 106



Page 67 of 106



Page 68 of 106



Page 69 of 106



Page 70 of 106



Page 71 of 106



Page 72 of 106



Page 73 of 106



Page 74 of 106



Page 75 of 106



Page 76 of 106



Page 77 of 106



Page 78 of 106



Page 79 of 106



Page 80 of 106



Page 81 of 106



Page 82 of 106



  

 

 

 

 

Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  
 
Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
 
 
Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 
 
David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 
 

 

 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

 

 
5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6d 

October 16, 2024 
  
 Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors  

5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Agreement No. IT-PS-21-002 
with Golden Five, LLC. 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to Contract 
No. IT-PS-21-002 with Golden Five, LLC in an amount of $156,873.41 for a 
total not-to-exceed amount of $381,473.41 for SMART’s Microsoft 365 
Infrastructure. 

 

SUMMARY 
On January 1, 2022, SMART entered into an Agreement with Golden Five LLC 
to provide consultation, monitoring, ongoing management, and support 
services for SMART’s SharePoint Online, Exchange Online, Active Directory 
Systems and Dell Data Protection Manager Systems. These systems are also 
referred to as SMART’s Microsoft 365 Infrastructure. SMART utilizes these 
systems daily, so maintaining these systems in an operational state is critical.  
 

SMART wishes to continue receiving Golden Five’s services and recommends 
executing the two-year extension available in the Agreement. SMART also 
recommends increasing the not-to-exceed amount by $156,873.41 for a new 
Not-to-Exceed amount of $381,473.41 to cover the extension term. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Fiscal impact of the amendment is $156,873.41. The 
funds are budgeted in the Board Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 and 
assumed to be available in Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027. 
 

REVIEWED BY:   [ x ] Finance __/s/_______ [ x ] Counsel ____/s/______ 

 
Respectfully, 
 
   /s/ 
Bryan Crowley 
Information Systems Manager 
 
Attachment(s):  Golden Five’s Contract Amendment No. 3  

Page 83 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


 

Golden Five, LLC 

Third Amendment 

IT-PS-21-002  Page 1 of 3 
 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT  

AND GOLDEN FIVE, LLC 

 

 This Third Amendment dated as of October 16, 2024 (the “Third Amendment”), to the 

Agreement by and between Golden Five, LLC (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”) and the 

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (hereinafter referred to as “SMART”), dated as of 

January 1, 2022 (the “Original Agreement,” as amended and supplemented by the First 

Amendment, Second Amendment, and now this Third Amendment, the “Agreement”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Consultant and SMART previously entered the Original Agreement on 

January 1, 2022, to provide Microsoft 365 managed services, and 

 

WHEREAS, SMART previously entered into the First Amendment to the Agreement to 

add two sub-tasks to Task 1 of the Scope of Work and to modify the Schedules of Rates; and  

 

WHEREAS, SMART previously entered in the Second Amendment to the Agreement to 

increase the not-to-exceed amount by $30,000; and  

 

WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the 

Agreement through December 31, 2026 utilizing the two-year option available in the Agreement 

and increase the not-to-exceed amount by $156,873.41 for a total not-to-exceed amount of 

$381,473.41; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT”.  Article 5 Section 5.02 of the Agreement is hereby 

deleted and replaced with the following: 

 

Section 5.02           Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the rates established 

in Exhibit B; provided, however, that total payments to Consultant shall not exceed 

$381,473.41 without the prior written approval of SMART.  Consultant shall submit 

its invoices in arrears on a monthly basis in a form approved by the Chief Financial 

Officer.  The invoices shall show or include: (i) the task(s) performed; (ii) the time in 

quarter hours devoted to the task(s); (iii) the hourly rate or rates of the persons 

performing the task(s); and (iv) copies of receipts for reimbursable 

materials/expenses, if any.  All reimbursable expenses must comply with SMART’s 

Travel Guidelines and must receive prior approval.  Consultant’s reimbursement for 

materials/expenses shall not include items already included in Consultant’s overhead 

Page 84 of 106



 

Golden Five, LLC 

Third Amendment 

IT-PS-21-002  Page 2 of 3 
 

as may be billed as a part of its labor rates set forth in Exhibit B.  SMART does not 

reimburse Consultant for travel time.   

 

2. “ARTICLE 6.  TERM OF AGREEMENT”.  Section 6.01 of the Agreement is 

hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 

 

Section 6.01           The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect through 

December 31, 2026, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of 

Article 7 below.  

 

3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 

the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 

and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 

contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 

any provision of the Agreement. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85 of 106



 

Golden Five, LLC 

Third Amendment 

IT-PS-21-002  Page 3 of 3 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Third Amendment as 

of the date first set forth above. 

  

      

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

           Eddy Cumins, General Manager 

 

  

   

 GOLDEN FIVE, LLC 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

          Dr. Sonia Clavero Villarrubia,  

          Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

 

                                                         APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

Dated: _______________                  By______________________________ 

      District Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86 of 106



  

 

 

 

 

Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  
 
Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
 
 
Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 
 
Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 
 
Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 
 
David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 
 
Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 
 
Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 
 

 

 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

 

 
5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6e 

October 16, 2024 
  
 Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors  

5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. OP-PS-21-005 with 
Urban Transportation Associates  
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. OP-
PS-21-005 with Urban Transportation Associates, Inc. to modify the scope of work 
to incorporate real-time display website hosting, APC diagnostic review services, 
and other post implementation APC related as-needed support services and 
increase the not-to-exceed amount by $51,175 for a total not-to-exceed amount of 
$387,859. 

 
SUMMARY 
SMART entered into an Agreement with Urban Transportation Associates (UTA) on 
April 6, 2022, to furnish and install an Automatic Passenger Counter (APC) system 
onboard SMART’s railcars and implement a cloud-based reporting software. The 
project has been very successful, and SMART has received excellent support from 
UTA. The original contract included five years warranty for parts and labor related 
to hardware and maintenance of existing software. A real-time train load map was 
provided as an added feature by the vendor, but fees were not included in the 
contract for map hosting or support. Since project implementation, UTA has worked 
with SMART to create custom analytic reports and make changes to the real-time 
train map. This amendment incorporates ongoing post implementation support 
services and associated fees into the contract. Fees for real-time map site 
maintenance and analytical reporting support will be on an as-needed basis. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The cost of the amendment is $51,175 for services through 
September 20, 2027, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $387,859.  These funds 
are budgeted in the Board Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 and assumed in 
Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027. 
 
REVIEWED BY:   [ x ] Finance ___/s/______   [ x ] Counsel ___/s/_______ 
 
Respectfully, 
 
   /s/ 
Emily Betts 
Planning Manager 
 
Attachment(s):  Urban Transportation Associates Amendment No. 1  

Page 87 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


 

URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005  Page 1 of 9 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT  

AND URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

 This First Amendment dated as of October 16, 2024 (the “First Amendment”), to the 

Agreement for Consultant Services by and between Urban Transportation Associates, Inc. 

(hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”) and the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

(hereinafter referred to as “SMART”), dated as of April 6, 2022 (the “Original Agreement,” as 

amended and supplemented by this First Amendment, the “Agreement”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT and SMART previously entered the Original Agreement 

on April 6, 2022 to furnish and install an Automatic Passenger Counter (“APC”) system onboard 

SMART’s railcars and implement a cloud-based reporting software; and 

 

WHEREAS, SMART desires to amend the Agreement to modify the scope of work to 

incorporate real-time display website hosting, APC diagnostic review services, and other APC 

related as-needed services, and increase the not-to-exceed amount by $51,175.00 for a total not-

to-exceed amount of $387,859.00;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. “ARTICLE 2.  LIST OF EXHIBITS”.  The following exhibits are attached hereto 

and incorporated herein:  

 

(a) Exhibit A:  Scope of Work & Timeline  

 

The Exhibit A “Scope of Work & Timeline” of the Original Agreement is hereby 

amended to include the Exhibit A “Scope of Work & Timeline” in this First 

Amendment. 
 

(b) Exhibit B:  Schedule of Rates 

 

The Exhibit B “Schedule of Rates” in the Agreement is hereby deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the Exhibit B “Schedule of Rates” included in this First 

Amendment. 

 

 

 

Page 88 of 106



 

URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005  Page 2 of 9 
 

2. “ARTICLE 5.  PAYMENT”.  Article 5 is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 

with the following: 

 

For all services required hereunder, Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the 

following terms:  

 Section 5.01  Consultant shall invoice SMART in arrears detailing the 

tasks performed pursuant to the Scope of Work requested by the SMART Manager.  

SMART shall pay Consultant within 30 days after submission of the invoices.  

 Section 5.02  Consultant shall be paid for the satisfactory completion of 

the work described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) in accordance with the Exhibit 

B “Schedule of Rates”.  The not-to-exceed (NTE) amount of $387,859.00 for this 

Agreement includes labor, supervision, applicable surcharges such as taxes, insurance 

and fringe benefits as well as all other direct and indirect costs, overhead and profit 

allowance, equipment, materials and supplies.  In no case shall Consultant be 

reimbursed for an amount in excess of the NTE amount without a formal written 

amendment to this Agreement. Consultant must submit all invoices on a timely basis, 

but no later than thirty (30) days from the date the services/charges were incurred. 

SMART does not reimburse for travel time. 

 Section 5.03  Consultant must submit all invoices on a timely basis, but 

no later than thirty (30) days from the date the services/charges were incurred. 

District shall not accept invoices submitted by Consultant after the end of such thirty 

(30) day period without District pre-approval. Time is of the essence with respect to 

submission of invoices and failure by Consultant to abide by these requirements may 

delay or prevent payment of invoices or cause such invoices to be returned to the 

Consultant unpaid. 

3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 

the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 

and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 

contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 

any provision of the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89 of 106



URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005 Page 3 of 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment as of 

the date first set forth above. 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

      Eddy Cumins, General Manager 

URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, 

INC. 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

     Thomas Kowalski, President & CEO 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Dated: _______________ By______________________________ 

District Counsel 

Page 90 of 106



URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005 Page 4 of 9 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK & TIMELINE 

“Section G. Ongoing Maintenance & Support Services” included herein is hereby added to 

Article III “Scope of Work” of the Exhibit A Scope of Work & Timeline. 

G. Ongoing Maintenance & Support Services

A. Provide Real-time Display Web Site Hosting

a. Consultant shall provide website hosting services for the Real-Time Display

Website. These hosting services shall include the following:

i. Website Hosting Infrastructure:

1. Consultant will ensure the hosting environment complies with

industry best practices for security and performance.

ii. Uptime and Reliability:

1. Consultant will ensure 99.9% uptime for the hosted website.

iii. Security:

1. Consultant shall undergo annual security audits and

vulnerability assessments.

2. Consultant shall manage website SSL certificates for data

encryption.

3. Consultant shall maintain website firewall configuration to

protect against unauthorized access.

iv. Backups and Disaster Recovery:

1. Consultant shall conduct monthly backups of website data and

configurations.

2. Consultant shall establish a disaster recovery plan to minimize

data loss in the event of failure.

3. Consultant shall test backup and recovery processes

periodically to ensure effectiveness.

Page 91 of 106



URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005 Page 5 of 9 

b. Place of performance:

i. This work will be completed remotely.

c. Specific Access Requirements:

i. No specific access requirements are needed for this contract. All work

is completed remotely.

d. SMART Resources:

i. SMART will provide timely communications with contractor

throughout the term of the contract. Most communication will be done

through email, phone, or meeting software such as Teams or Zoom.

e. Deliverable(s):

i. The website hosting work will be done continuously throughout the

term of the agreement. Each calendar month, Consultant shall provide

a report detailing the following:

1. Total uptime for the month.

2. Security updates and actions taken.

3. Status of backups.

4. A summary of any incidents or issues corrected with the

hosting in the past month.

ii. The report shall be submitted in PDF format. Reports shall be

submitted electronically to the SMART Manager.

iii. Deliverables and invoices associated with this task shall be due to the

SMART Manager no later than 30 calendar days following the last

calendar day of each month for the term of this agreement.

B. APC Diagnostic Review Services

a. Consultant shall provide:

i. Monitoring of APC hardware diagnostics.

ii. Confirmation that a maximum percentage of trips are sampled each

day will be provided through daily APC monitor emails.

Each day, Consultant shall provide an email report to SMART 

staff confirming that a maximum percentage of trips are sampled 

each day.  

Page 92 of 106



URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005 Page 6 of 9 

iii. Unlimited support for SMART staff from UTA software and

hardware engineers.

b. Place of performance:

i. This work will be performed remotely.

c. Specific Access Requirements:

i. No specific access requirements are needed for this contract. All

work is completed remotely.

d. SMART Resources:

i. SMART will provide timely communications with contractor

throughout the term of the contract. Most communication will be

done through email, phone, or meeting software such as Teams or

Zoom.

e. Deliverable(s):

i. Daily Reports:

1. The email report detailing the daily performance of the

SMART APC system shall be sent no more than 48 hours

after the conclusion of the day being reported on.

ii. Invoices associated with this task shall be due to the SMART

Manager no later than 30 calendar days following the last calendar

day of each month for the term of this agreement.

C. As-Needed Website Maintenance and Support

a. Consultant will provide other as-needed maintenance and customization

support related to the APC system on a task order basis.  All task orders

will be issued in writing.  Task Order work will be on a time and materials

basis in accordance with the rates identified in the Exhibit B “Schedule of

Rates”.

Consultant may be tasked with the following as needed services.  The 

following list is not all-inclusive: 

i. Maintenance and Customization of the Train Real-Time display

and website hosting.

Page 93 of 106



URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005 Page 7 of 9 

ii. Analysis support to assist with rationalizing any

questions/discrepancy in the reporting software package.

iii. Provisioning and supporting new, special, and ad-hoc reports.  This

may include, providing these reports and interpretative support to

outside consultants using SMART’s APC data collected, as

requested by SMART.

iv. Other as-needed tasks as mutually agreed upon by SMART and

Consultant.

b. The specific scope of work, requirements, and deliverables will be defined

as part of the task order.  Upon completion of the work detailed in the task

order, Contractor shall provide any deliverables and invoices to the

SMART Manager no later than 30 calendar days following the issuance of

a Notice-to-Proceed for the task.

Page 94 of 106



URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005 Page 8 of 9 

EXHIBIT B 

SCHEDULE OF RATES 

I. PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION FEES

MILESTONE DESCRIPTION FEE 

1 Installation of Equipment $174,410.40 

2 Testing of Equipment $72,671.00 

3 Training of SMART Staff $14,534.20 

4 SMART Receives APC Certification from FTA $29,068.40 

TOTAL: $290,684.00 

Milestones shall be invoiced at the completion of all work associated with each milestone 

and upon written notice of acceptance by SMART.  Consultant shall include the SMART 

issued notice of acceptance with each invoice submission. 

The fees above include all labor, supervision, insurance, overhead, profit, equipment, 

materials, supplies, travel costs, and any other direct and indirect costs associated with 

performing the work. 

II. POST IMPLEMENTATION WARRANTY FEES

YEAR DESCRIPTION ANNUAL FEE 

1 Year 1 Warranty $9,200.00 

2 Year 2 Warranty $9,200.00 

3 Year 3 Warranty $9,200.00 

4 Year 4 Warranty $9,200.00 

5 Year 5 Warranty $9,200.00 

TOTAL: $46,000.00 

Warranty fees shall be invoiced at the start of the warranty period.  The invoice will 

cover each 12-month period. 

The fees above include all labor, supervision, insurance, overhead, profit, equipment, 

materials, supplies, travel costs, and any other direct and indirect costs associated with 

performing the work. 

Page 95 of 106



URBAN TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FIRST AMENDMENT 

OP-PS-21-005 Page 9 of 9 

III. ONGOING MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT

a. Real-Time Display Web Site Hosting:  $200 per Month

b. APC Diagnostic Review:  $105.00 per Month

c. As-Needed Real-Time Display Web Site Maintenance & Support and Analytical

Reporting Web Site Updates:  $135.00 per Hour

Page 96 of 106



Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  

Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 

David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

October 16, 2024 

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

SUBJECT: Petaluma North Station - Preparation for Passenger Service - 
Planned System Closure  

Dear Board Members: 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational Item 

SUMMARY: 
As a follow-up to information provided during the September 18, 2024, 
meeting of SMART’s Board of Directors, SMART’s General Manager has 
directed staff to provide information to the Board regarding the planned 
system closure that is necessary to prepare the Petaluma North Station for 
passenger service, which is planned to become operational in December 
of 2024. 

This presentation will provide details about the upcoming planned system 
closure, including information about the Public Outreach and 
Communications activities that will be conducted in support of the closure. 

REVIEWED BY:   [ x ] Finance ___/s/______  [ x ]Counsel __/s/_____ 

 Very truly yours, 

      /s/ 
 Aaron Parkes 
 Manager of Train Control Systems 

Page 97 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  

Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 

David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

October 16, 2024 

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

SUBJECT: Strategic Plan Update 

Dear Board Members: 

RECOMMENDATION: Information only 

SUMMARY 
SMART continues to develop the 2024-2029 Strategic Plan, following the 
outreach process previously outlined to the Board. Building on the online 
workshops held in early 2024, staff have continued to receive input from a wide 
range of stakeholders, both in person and online.  

On Wednesday September 25th, SMART conducted an in-person open house 
public workshop at the Petaluma Arts Center, located adjacent to the SMART 
Petaluma Downtown Station. The event was well attended, with around 150 
participants joining staff for updates on SMART and interactive exhibits related 
to the Strategic Plan. 

SMART presented the strategies and actions from the draft strategic plan for 
each goal area (Ridership, Pathways, Extensions, Freight) and invited 
participants to place dots next to their highest priority strategies and actions. 
Community members could also write comments on sticky notes corresponding 
to each goal area. SMART staff were available to answer questions regarding 
the strategic plan and the future of SMART. Community members placed over 
700 dots on the various posters and left over 60 comments on sticky notes.   

SMART will present a final draft of the Strategic Plan to the Citizens Oversight 
Committee (COC) and the Board of Directors in November 2024, with the final 
Plan presented to the Board for approval in December. 

REVIEWED BY:   [ x ] Finance __/s/______  [ x ] Counsel ___/s/_______ 

Respectfully, 

   /s/ 
Emily Betts 
Planning Manager 

Page 98 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  

Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 

David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 

AGENDA ITEM 9 

October 16, 2024 

Sonoma- Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #7 - Amend the Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 Adopted Budget 

Dear Board Members: 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   
Adopt Resolution No. 2024-37, amending Resolution No. 2024-19, the Fiscal Year 
2025 Adopted Budget to adjust funding to the Windsor Extension project. 

SUMMARY: 
SMART is currently pushing ahead with its many design and construction projects 
as part of its ambitious capital project in the current fiscal year. As the year 
progresses, we are adjusting funding needs to be able to complete these projects. 
To complete these projects in the current year, we need to bring additional funding 
into FY 2025.  

This Amendment advances $120,000 of funds that are programmed in FY 2026 to 
FY 2025 as that work will be done sooner than anticipated.  In addition, there is a 
shortfall of $225,000 in FY 2025 that needs to be funded.  Both modifications to the 
FY 2025 budget will be funded with Measure Q. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The overall fiscal impact of this Budget Amendment #7 is a 
reduction to the fund balance of $345,000. 

REVIEWED BY:   [ x ] Finance __/s/______  [ x ] Counsel ___/s/_______ 

Sincerely, 
    /s/ 
Heather McKillop 
Chief Financial Officer 

Attachment(s): 
1) Resolution No. 2024-37 -Budget Amendment #7
2) Appendix A to the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget

Funding Sources

Solutions for Congested 

Corridors Program

Affordable Housing 

Sustainable Communities 

- Mid-Pen

Affordable Housing 

Sustainable Communities - 

Windsor

Measure Q

FY25 13,341,386$         2,038,161$         750,000$       625,829.00$          

Amendment No. 1 (318,064)$         1,554,730$         -$        -$        

Amendment No. 7 -$       -$         -$        345,000.00$          

Amended Total FY25 13,023,322$         3,592,891$         750,000$       970,829$        

Windsor Extension -- Civil

Page 99 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


Resolution No. 2024-37 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

October 16, 2024 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2024-19, THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 TO PROVIDE FOR REVISED EXPENDITURE AUTHORITY 

____ 

WHEREAS, as part of its approval of the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, the Board 
of Directors considered the annual expenditures necessary for the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 
District; and  

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #1, which modified the expenditure 
authority and provided for revised position authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #2, which modfied the expenditure 
authority to provide for the purchase of land; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #3, to modify expenditure authority for 
the rollforward of funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #4, to program Local Partnership 
Program funds to partially fund the purchase of Hi-Rail vehicles; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #5, to modify expenditure authority to 
reflect the reduction of Federal 5337 State of Good Repair funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #6, to program new revenues and 
increase expenditure authority for freight; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to Amend the Annual Budget Resolution No. 2024-19 to modify 
the expenditure authority to adjust funding to the Windsor Extension Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that expenditure authority in Resolution No. 
2024-19, Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Adopted Budget, and Appendix A is hereby amended.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED except as specifically amended or supplemented by this 
Resolution, Resolution No. 2024-19, together with all supplements, amendments, and exhibits 
thereto is, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally adopted, and otherwise 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwide affect and provision 
of Resolution No. 2024-19. 

Page 100 of 106



Resolution No. 2024-37 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

October 16, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 
Transit District held on the 16th day of October 2024, by the following vote:  

DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

______________________________________ 

Eric Lucan, Chair, Board of Directors  
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 

Leticia Rosas, Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

Page 101 of 106



Appendix A - Passenger Rail/Pathway Sources & Uses

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 DRAFT BUDGET - SOURCES AND USES
A B C D E F G

FY25 Adopted 
Budget Amendment #1 Amendment #2 Amendment #3 Amendment #4 Amendment #5 Amendment #7 Amended Budget

1 Beginning Fund Balance * 81,342,877$          (3,766,550)$            -$  (4,814,561)$            -$  (220,394)$               (345,000)$               72,196,372$              
2 Revenues 
3 SMART S&U Tax
4 Measure Q 50,426,000$          -$  -$  50,426,000$              
5 Measure Q Roll Forward 1,432,038$             754,382$                (115,137)$               220,394$                2,291,677$                
6 Federal Funds
7 5307 - Urbanized Area Formula Funds (Preventative Maintenance) 3,770,292$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  3,770,292$                
8 5337 - Federal State of Good Repair Funds 6,350,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  (6,350,000)$            -$   
9 Discretionary Earmark 1,800,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  1,800,000$                

10 FRA - Consolidated Rail Infrastructure and Safety Improvements (CRISI) 1,499,298$            -$  -$  250,000$                -$  -$  1,749,298$                
11 FRA Suicide Prevention Grant 15,943$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  15,943$   
12 Quick Strike (CMAQ) McInnis to Smith Ranch Rd 789,308$                -$  -$  207,835$                -$  -$  997,143$   
13 State Funds
14 AHSC - Roseland Village (Round5) 2,263,161$            1,554,730$             -$  -$  -$  -$  3,817,891$                
15 AHSC - Kashia Tribe (Round 7) 750,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  750,000$   
16 AHSC - Petaluma (Danco) 2,549,485$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  2,549,485$                
17 ATP - SoCo Pathway - CTC/Caltrans/MTC 8,104,983$            (1,315,602)$            -$  -$  -$  -$  6,789,381$                
18 Caltrans Sustainability Communities Competative Planning Grant 400,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  400,000$   
19 Clean California Transit Grant 881,316$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  881,316$   
20 LCTOP - Low Carbon Transit  Operating 566,356$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  566,356$   
21 LPP - Local Partnership Program 789,308$                -$  -$  207,835$                115,137$                -$  1,112,280$                
22 ITIP - Windsor Systems 3,230,381$            -$  -$  3,394,509$             -$  -$  6,624,890$                
23 SCC - Windsor 13,341,386$          (318,064)$               -$  -$  -$  -$  13,023,322$              
24 SRA - State Rail Assistance 3,700,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  3,700,000$                
25 STA - State Transit Assistance (Population) 1,162,223$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  1,162,223$                
26 STA - State Transit Assistance (Revenue) 2,451,807$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  2,451,807$                
27 STA - SGR (State of Good Repair) 340,634$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  340,634$   
28 State Funds - Shuttle Service 500,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  500,000$   
29 TIRCP - Petaluma North and McDowell Crossing 6,774,657$            1,785,065$             -$  -$  -$  -$  8,559,722$                
30 TIRCP - Windsor to Healdsburg 1,450,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  1,450,000$                
31 Regional Funds
32 Measure M - SCTA -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   
33 Other Governments 1,401,532$            628,383$                -$  -$  -$  -$  2,029,915$                
34 Regional Measure 3 (RM3) 1,276,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  1,276,000$                
35 Other Sources
36 Advertising 132,100$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  132,100$   
37 Charges for Services 109,564$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  109,564$   
38 Fare Revenues 2,215,290$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  2,215,290$                
39 Interest Earning 1,500,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  1,500,000$                
40 Misc. 54,257$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  54,257$   
41 Parking 11,400$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  11,400$   
42 Rent - Real Estate 479,636$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  479,636$   
43 Shuttle Revenues 1,200$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  1,200$   
44 Total Revenues 121,087,517$       3,766,550$            -$  4,814,561$            -$  (6,129,606)$           123,539,022$           
45 Total Revenues + Fund Balance 202,430,394$       -$  -$  -$  -$  (6,350,000)$           195,735,394$           
46

47
FY25 Adopted 

Budget Amendment #1 Amendment #2 Amendment #3 Amendment #4 Amendment #5 Amendment #7 Amended Budget
48 Debt Service 16,904,116$          -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  16,904,116$              
49 Salaries & Benefits 28,822,096$          -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  28,822,096$              
50 Reduction for Salaries Charged to Projects (1,655,611)$           -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  (1,655,611)$               
51 Reduction for Allocation of Salaries/ Services/ Supplies to Freight (32,895)$                 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  (32,895)$   
52 Service & Supplies 19,671,720$          -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  19,671,720$              
53 Total Salaries, Benefits, Service, & Supplies 46,805,310$          -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  46,805,310$              
54 Contribution to OPEB/ CalPERS Liability Fund 1,000,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  1,000,000$                
55 Contribution to Capital Sinking Fund 2,000,000$            -$  (1,307,750)$            -$  -$  -$  692,250$   
56 Operating Reserve 450,346$                -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  450,346$   
57 Total Reserve Contributions 3,450,346$            -$  (1,307,750)$            -$  -$  -$  2,142,596$                
58 Total Debt Service, Operating, Reserves 67,159,722$          -$  (1,307,750)$            -$  -$  -$  65,851,972$              
60 Balance 135,270,672$       -$  (1,307,750)$           -$  -$  (6,350,000)$           129,883,422$           

61
FY25 Adopted 

Budget Amendment #1 Amendment #2 Amendment #3 Amendment #4 Amendment #5 Amendment #7 Amended Budget
62
63 State of Good Repair and Projects
64 Bridges -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   
65 DMU 1,331,218$            -$  -$  -$  -$  (200,000)$               1,131,218$                
66 Equipment 1,200,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  (1,200,000)$            -$   
67 Information Technology 813,910$                -$  -$  -$  -$  (368,560)$               445,350$   
68 Non-Revenue Vehicles 921,654$                -$  -$  -$  -$  921,654$   
69 Safety and Security 15,943$  -$  -$  -$  -$  15,943$   
70 Track, MOW, and Facilities 475,827$                -$  -$  -$  -$  (20,489)$                 455,338$   
71 Train Control 2,500,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  (2,460,000)$            40,000$   
72 Total State of Good Repair 7,258,552$            -$  -$  -$  -$  (4,249,049)$            3,009,503$                
73 Environmental and Mitigation 1,338,666$            -$  -$  -$  -$  1,338,666$                
74 Planning - Studies 445,403$                -$  -$  -$  -$  445,403$   
75 Planning - Capital 450,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  450,000$   
76 Shuttle 100,000$                -$  -$  -$  -$  100,000$   
77 Other Construction 1,108,632$            24,407$  -$  -$  -$  1,133,039$                
78 Miscellaneous 1,715,357$            -$  -$  -$  -$  (1,715,357)$            -$   
79 Total Planning, Environmental, Other Construction, Shuttle 5,158,058$            24,407$  -$  -$  -$  (1,715,357)$            3,467,108$                
80

81
FY25 Adopted 

Budget Amendment #1 Amendment #2 Amendment #3 Amendment #4 Amendment #5 Amendment #7 Amended Budget
82
83 Capital Projects
84 Expansion 37,955,872$          4,244,709$             -$  3,644,509$             -$  345,000$                46,190,090$              
85 Pathways - Design and Permitting 6,051,072$            -$  -$  -$  -$  6,051,072$                
86 Pathways - Capital 21,312,346$          (709,666)$               -$  1,170,052$             -$  (115,200)$               21,657,532$              
87 Land Acquisition -$   -$  1,307,750$             -$  -$  1,307,750$                
88 Total Capital Expenditures 65,319,290$          3,535,043$             1,307,750$             4,814,561$             -$  (115,200)$               345,000$                75,206,444$              
89 Ending Fund Balance 57,534,772$          (3,559,450)$            -$  -$  -$  (270,394)$               (345,000)$               53,359,928$              

Page 102 of 106



Eric Lucan, Chair 
Marin County Board of Supervisors  

Melanie Bagby, Vice Chair 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Kate Colin 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Chris Coursey 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Rachel Farac 
Transportation Authority of Marin 

Debora Fudge 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Patty Garbarino 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Barbara Pahre 
Golden Gate Bridge, 
Highway/Transportation District 

Gabe Paulson 
Marin County Council of Mayors and 
Councilmembers 

David Rabbitt 
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

Chris Rogers 
Sonoma County Mayors’ and 
Councilmembers Association 

Mary Sackett 
Marin County Board of Supervisors 

Eddy Cumins 

General Manager 

5401 Old Redwood Highway 
Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 
Phone: 707-794-3330 
Fax: 707-794-3037 
www.SonomaMarinTrain.org 

AGENDA ITEM 10 

October 16, 2024 

Sonoma- Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors 
5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #8 - Amends the Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 Adopted 
Budget  

Dear Board Members: 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2024-38, amending Resolution No. 2024-19, the FY 2025 
Adopted Budget to add fund balance from FY 2025 and increase expenditure 
authority for freight. 

SUMMARY: 
We have finished closing FY 2024 and we have an unencumbered fund 
balance of $213,236.  We want to utilize these funds, plus $270,000 of the 
State Shortline Grant, and $56,764 of the freight fund balance to fund (3) 
three bridges which need repair.  The three bridges are: 

▪ Novato Creek - $65,000
▪ Sear Point Drainage - $225,000
▪ Wingo (Sonoma Creek) - $250,000

These projects total $540,000.  After this action, there will be a fund balance 
of $61,784.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  This action reflects the fund balance of $213,236 at the end 
of FY 2024 and budgets that fund balance plus $270,000 of State Shortline 
Grant funds and $56,764 of existing fund balance ($213,236 + $270,000 + 
$56,764) for a total of $540,000 to fund (3) three bridges. 

REVIEWED BY:   [ x ] Finance __/s/______  [ x ] Counsel ___/s/_______ 

Sincerely, 

   /s/ 
Heather McKillop 
Chief Financial Officer 

Attachment(s): 
1) Resolution No. 2024-38, Budget Amendment #8
2) Appendix B to the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget

Page 103 of 106

http://www.sonomamarintrain.org/


Resolution No. 2024-38 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

October 16, 2024 

Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 
DISTRICT, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2024-19, THE ANNUAL 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 TO PROVIDE FOR REVISED EXPENDITURE AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, as part of its approval of the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, the 
Board of Directors considered the annual expenditures necessary for the Sonoma-Marin Area 
Rail Transit District; and  

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #1, which modified the expenditure 
authority and provided for revised position authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #2, which modfied the expenditure 
authority to provide for the purchase of land; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #3, to modify expenditure authority 
for the rollforward of funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #4, to program Local Partnership 
Program funds to partially fund the purchase of Hi-Rail vehicles; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #5, to modify expenditure authority 
to reflect the reduction of Federal 5337 State of Good Repair funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #6, to program new revenues and 
increase expenditure authority for freight; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Budget Amendment #7, to modify expenditure authority 
to adjust funding to the Windsor Extension Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to Amend the Annual Budget Resolution No. 2024-19 to 
program revenues and increase expenditure authority for freight. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that expenditure authority in Resolution No. 2024-
19, Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Adopted Budget, and Appendix B is hereby amended.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED except as specifically amended or supplemented by this 
Resolution, Resolution No. 2024-19, together with all supplements, amendments, and exhibits 
thereto is, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally adopted, and otherwise 
contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwide affect and 
provision of Resolution No. 2024-19. 

Page 104 of 106



Resolution No. 2024-38 
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

October 16, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma-Marin 
Area Rail Transit District held on the 16th day of October 2024, by the following vote:  

DIRECTORS: 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

________________________________  
Eric Lucan, Chair, Board of Directors      
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 
Leticia Rosas, Clerk of the Board of Directors  
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District 

Page 105 of 106



A B C

FY25 Budget
Budget 

Amendment #6
Budget 

Amendment #9 Amended Budget
1 Beginning Fund Balance -$  -$  213,236$          213,236$              
2 Revenues
3 State Grant (42341) 393,549$               -$  -$  393,549$              
4 State Shortline Grant 83,960$                 45,816$            270,000$          399,776$              
5 Freight Movement Fees 700,000$               -$  -$  700,000$              
6 Leases 270,000$               -$  -$  270,000$              
7 Storage 104,800$               -$  -$  104,800$              
8 45(g) Tax Credit & Misc. Revenues 253,000$               340,000$          -$  593,000$              
9 Total Revenues 1,805,309$            385,816$          270,000$          2,461,125$          

10 Total Revenues + Fund Balance 1,805,309$            385,816$          483,236$          2,674,361$          
11
12 FY25 Budget Difference Difference
13
14 Salaries & Benefits 870,099$               -$  -$  870,099$              
15 Service & Supplies 767,290$               175,635$          -$  942,925$              
16 Total Salaries, Benefits, Services, & Supplies 1,637,389$            175,635$          -$  1,813,024$          
17 Balance 167,920$               210,181$          -$  861,337$              
18
19 FY25 Budget Difference Difference
20
21 Brazos Branch Bridge Repairs (High Priority) -$  -$  -$  -$  
22 Brazos Branch Bridge Repairs - Phase II 67,920$                 -$  540,000$          607,920$              
23 Tie Replacement -$  50,000$            -$  50,000$                
24 Grade Crossing Repair 100,000$               41,633$            -$  141,633$              
25 Total Capital & State of Good Repair 167,920$               91,633$            540,000$          799,553$              
26 Balance -$  118,548$          (56,764)$           61,784$                

Appendix B - Freight Sources and Uses 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget 

Page 106 of 106


	01_Agenda_10.16.2024
	02_Minutes_09.18.2024_Final
	06a_Monthly Ridership Report-Sept 2024
	06b_Monthly Financial Report- July - August 2024
	06c_MTC Master Funding Agreement FY 24 - FY 34
	06d_Golden Five LLC Amendment No. 3 (IT-PS-21-002)
	06e_Urban Transportation Associates Amendment No. 1 (OP-PS-21-005)
	07_Petaluma North Preparation for Passenger Service_Planned System Closure
	08_Strategic Plan Update
	09_Windsor Extension Project Budget Amendment #7
	10_Freight Bridges - Budget Amendment #8
	FY25 Draft




